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Village of Cazenovia Planning Board 

Meeting Minutes 

October 10, 2016 

 
Present:  Richard Huftalen, Chair; Adam Walburger; Anne McDowell; Jennifer Gavilondo; and 5 
Stephen McEntee. 
 
Others Present:  Mayor; James Stokes, Village Attorney; Greg Widrick; Kurt Wendler; Don Ferlow; 
David Muraco; Louis Muraco; Kurt Wheeler; Jim Steinberg; William Hall; Phil Byrnes; Sally Ryan; 
Sarah Webster; Carlos Gavilondo; Diane Webb; R. Shain Emerson; Shain C. Emerson; Bob 10 
Constable; William Tillman; Jody Reynolds; Capt. M. A. Wright; Judy Gianforte; David Katleski; 
Willliam Zupan; Bob Lucas; Phil Robb; Lauren Lines; Jason Emerson; Allyn Stewart; Bob 
Cowherd; Lindsey Cowherd; John Cawley; Jim Steinberg; Barry Schreibman; John Dickerson; 
David Vredenburgh; Andrew Kowalczk; Glenn Steed; Matt Vredenburgh; Anne B. Ferguson; Dick 
Mitchell; Noel King; Roger DeMuth; Don Raleigh; Bob Constable; Bobbie Constable; Paul 15 
Weiskotten; Steve Fisher; Madeline Hartt; Kate Stewart; Dave Porter; Ginny Krumsiek; Howard 
Krumsiek; Will Wester; Bob Ridler; Bill McDowell; Joseph Liberatore; and many more who did not 
sign in.  There were approximately 60 people in attendance. 
 

* * * * * 20 
 
R. Huftalen called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. and introduced the Board. 
 

* * * * * 
 25 

R. Huftalen asked for any modifications to the minutes of September 12, 2016.  There were none.  
S. McEntee made the motion to approve the minutes as submitted.  A. McDowell seconded.  The 
motion carried with 5 in favor, 0 opposed. 
 

* * * * * 30 
 
Sims Lane Land Trust, Hanig Eng, Trustee, Two-Lot Subdivision, Public Hearing 

David Vredenburgh was the representative.  He stated that no new information has been submitted.  
He asked for the public hearing to be continued to the November meeting. 
 35 

* * * * * 
 

Cazenovia Restoration Corp., 11 Chenango Street, Three-Lot Subdivision, Public Hearing 

R. Huftalen explained that this application has been before the Planning Board previously and it was 
referred to the Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA).  The ZBA made a determination and returned it to 40 
the Planning Board.  David Vredenburgh came forward to walk the Board through the map and 
describe the application.  10-foot strips have been added all the way from Chenango Street to each 
one of the rear lots for access.  This would result in a 30-foot wide easement for access for ingress 
and egress and utilities for the two rear lots.  This was presented to the ZBA at their meeting on 
September 19.  The driveway will continue off of the existing driveway, but there is a pinch point by 45 
an existing pole and the driveway will need some modification to make it wider so bigger vehicles 
can get back there.  The easement will include the driveway as well as utilities (sewer, water, and 
gas).  There is already electric going to the back lot. 
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R. Huftalen:  There are a number of documents relating to the application, including a resolution 50 
adopted by the ZBA and the minutes from the ZBA meeting discussing it.  These are the conclusions 
from the ZBA’s resolution:   
 

1. The Applicant's request for a variance to reduce the lot frontage on lots 2 and 3 to ten feet 
and the lot frontage on lot 1 to 45 feet, as shown on the map prepared by David A. 55 
Vredenburgh, L.L.S. dated May 27, 2016 and last revised September 19, 2016 is hereby 
APPROVED, SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS: 
 

a. that the Planning Board shall require the recording of an updated right of way and 
easement instrument setting forth with more particularity the rights and obligations 60 
of the lot owners with respect to the shared driveway access and utility installation 
and maintenance, with all such instruments being subject to the approval of the 
attorney for the Village as to form; 

b. that the subdivision be limited to three lots, substantially as shown on the map 
prepared by David A. Vredenburgh, L.L.S. dated May 27, 2016 and last revised 65 
September 19, 2016; 

c. that the private access drive is to remain private, subject to the contemplated 
easements, and is not to be dedicated as a public street; 

d. that the ZBA recommends to the Planning Board that it require a better definition 
of the extension of the existing paved drive to most effectively serve proposed lots 70 
2 and 3. 

 
A. Walburger:  What is the primary lot that owns the property that the easements are being seeded 
to?  Which property is it originally being carved off of on the existing tax map?  Mr. Vredenburgh:  
Both.  Part of the original one and part of the remainder—Lots 1 and 2. 75 
 
S. McEntee:  Does the current Lot 2 go all the way to Chenango Street?  Mr. Vredenburgh:  Yes.  
S. McEntee:  Is Lot 2 the remainder?  Also, as part of the tax map, there is a swath that goes all the 
way to Chenango Street for Lot 2.  Mr. Vredenburgh:  That is correct.  S. McEntee:  How wide is it?  
Mr. Stokes:  The tax map shows 15 feet. 80 
 
J. Gavilondo:  The creek is right there.  Is there concern about the water table or drainage?  
Mr. Vredenburgh:  The top of the lot is a good 20 feet above the creek, so there is no concern.  It 
slopes down quite a bit.  J. Gavilondo:  Where are the building envelopes for those lots?  Are there 
building envelopes that would actually work?  Mr. Vredenburgh:  Anywhere uphill from the creek at 85 
the top of the bank would work on both lots.   
 
A. McDowell:  The lots are 2.2 acres each?  Mr. Vredenburgh:  Yes. 
 
R. Huftalen:  I will open the discussion for public comment.   90 
 
Jim Steinberg, 9 Chenango Street:  This is obviously a complicated procedure and there are a 
number of issues that go between the issues of the decision by the ZBA, the Village Board’s own 
consideration of how we are thinking about future flag lots, and the proposed Code revision.  I think 
this is coming up at a fairly awkward time, in which the Village is thoughtfully trying to figure out 95 
what ought to be the way we think about flag lots in the Village.  And there is beginning to be a 
thoughtful discussion and a proposal around that.  Then trying to decide this issue in the absence of 
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how the new guidelines will apply to creation of new flag lots.  I think it is getting the cart before the 
horse to some extent.  But even if you felt that these parallel processes should go on in parallel, there 
are a number of issues just about the fundamentals of planning.  The Planning Board is being asked 100 
to approve a plan with no clarity at all about what will go there other than kind of a blank check to 
create a new subdivision back there and two new houses.  I think that the proponent wants to create 
the opportunity to kind of drive the process forward by opening the idea that the subdivision gets 
approved without addressing any of the concerns about what might go into the property.  I think a 
thoughtful planning process here, taking into account the general concern about flag lots, the special 105 
nature of this property, the historic nature of the property, the geographic nature of the property in 
the Village, the environmental situation there, would suggest that before you go ahead and approve 
the plan, we have some sense of what he proposes to do with it.  As I have told the Planning Board 
before, I believe there is a good solution that is good for us as the neighbors, but also for the Village, 
which is to basically take this particular lot, at least part of it, and take it out of subdivision and out 110 
of development.  The opportunity to explore both what is anticipated to go into this particular 
property and how to reconcile the various interests of the Village and the adjacent property owners is 
a more thoughtful way to proceed on this.  So my strong conviction here is that we ought to try to 
have a process engaging with the Planning Board and the proponent here and think about whether a 
solution that meets all the various needs and interests are reflected in this particular piece of 115 
property.  As I say, I am flexible.  We would like to engage in a conversation.  I think it would 
benefit the Village to think about what the dispose of this property ought to be, understanding that 
the proponent is entitled to a fair return on his property.  I am entirely supportive of that.  But there 
are broader issues at stake, both for us and for the Village as a whole. 
 120 
Bob Constable, Mill Street:  I am not all that familiar with everything that has been going on here 
because I don’t hear very well, particularly at these hearings, where you seem to be determined not 
to let us hear very much.  You could use a speaker system.  Otherwise, you should have private 
hearings.  But anyway, with regard to this particular proposal, is there a public access route to this 
development area?  Where would the access route come from? 125 
 
R. Huftalen:  It is private property and a private action.  The owner of the property is requesting a 
subdivision.  There is no public access to it.  It would go from a single lot to two lots.   
 
Mr. Constable:  Where would the private access be then?  R. Huftalen:  Where the existing driveway 130 
is now. 
 
Mr. Constable:  Isn’t that a shared driveway?  R. Huftalen:  Yes, that is correct. 
 
Mr. Constable:  Would it require the permission of both people that are doing it?  R. Huftalen:  Yes, 135 
it would require an easement.  There is an existing easement in place that has been in place since 
1936, I believe.   
 
Mr. Constable:  But if one party does not agree to that, is it dead?  Mr. Stokes:  That is a legal issue.  
That is not the Planning Board’s issue.  That is not something the Planning Board deals with. 140 
 
R. Huftalen:  One of the charges of the Planning Board is that the Planning Board shall require the 
recording of an updated right-of-way and easement instrument setting forth the rights and 
obligations of the lot owners.  Jim, what is the mechanism to do that?  Mr. Stokes:  It is like a deed.  
It is a declaration that gets filed.   145 
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J. Gavilondo:  Is there a recorded easement now?  Mr. Stokes:  Yes, it was reserved in a deed in 
1936.   
 
J. Gavilondo:  Has this always been one owner?  Mr. Vredenburgh:  Not always.  At one time, all of 150 
this was owned by predecessors to Steinberg.  (Pointing to the plans):  They sold this off and they 
sold this off.  There was a big commercial greenhouse here.  The Paces lived here and ran the 
greenhouse.   
 
J. Gavilondo:  At that time, this was an easement for who?  Mr. Vredenburgh:  It is a common 155 
shared driveway between the Steinberg property and the people back here—the rest of the property.  
Mr. Stokes:  The person who owned the Steinberg residence owned the whole thing.  They sold off 
the remainder of it.  She retained an easement across their driveway to get to her house, which is 
now the Steinberg residence. 
 160 
R. Huftalen:  In the minutes, Mrs. Bell questioned if Steinberg would still have access to the 
driveway even if it changes in the mapping, which I am not clear what that means, but the deed from 
October 1936 was from Julia Burden to Herman Everts and Beverly Everts.  “The party of the first 

part reserves the right of ingress and egress on and over the driveway now constructed and 

maintained on said premises or as may hereafter be mutually changed in any manner, 165 
westerly . . .”  This establishes a permanent easement.  Presumably, that was part of the deed when 
Steinberg bought the property and it goes with the property.   
 
J. Gavilondo:  Mr. Steinberg, is that in your deed?  Mr. Steinberg:  It is in our deed. 
 170 
R. Huftalen:  It is repeated in the deed that Cazenovia Restoration Corporation took title subject to 
the rights of the property owner to continue to use that driveway.  The ZBA had quite an extensive 
discussion over it.  There was some discussion about the GML (County comments) recommendation 
report that was sent in by the Madison County Planning Department.  One of the things that 
Mr. Steinberg brings up is the planning and what the future of the lots will be.  To me, the zoning is 175 
not changing and the use is not going to change.  Where there was one lot, now there will be two. 
 
A. Walburger:  Just for everyone’s information, this is in the R-20 zone, which is primary 
residential.  However, in 180-23, these are the special uses currently allowed in an R-20 zone, just so 
everyone can keep this in mind: 180 
 

A.  Home occupation. 
B.  Bed-and-breakfast. 
C.  Group residence. 
D.  School, private. 185 
E.  School, public. 
F.  Religious facility. 
G.  Public outdoor recreation. 
H.  Post-secondary educational institution. 
I.  Community center. 190 

 
A. Walburger:  This is a pretty unique lot in the Village.  I certainly am not against the landowner’s 
desire to subdivide it.  I feel pretty strongly for Mr. Steinberg’s position that a discussion should be 
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had about what the desired ultimate use for these lots should be in that spot, given this fairly wide 
range of special uses that could happen there.  It doesn’t necessarily have to be two houses. 195 
 
R. Huftalen:  The action we would be taking now is just a subdivision into an R-20 zone.  Any of 
those other uses have to come back before the Board again.  Any of those uses would be allowed, at 
present, on one lot.  A. Walburger:  One use. 
 200 
Diane Webb:  I thought this was going to be three lots all together.  You just said a moment ago that 
the one lot would become two lots.  Mr. Stokes:  There are two lots now, one of which already has a 
home on it.  You go from two to three.   
 
Ms. Webb:  Is Steinberg one of them?  Mr. Stokes:  No.  There are about five acres back there.  It is 205 
proposed to split that into two 2-1/2 acre lots.   
 
Ms. Webb:  I do agree with Adam that it is a rather unique lot in the Village.  I live on a unique lot in 
the Village.  I have a home that was built right behind me.  Where are the two lots going to be?  Do 
they extend farther?  Mr. Stokes:  You can come up and look at the map.  It might be the simplest.  210 
 
Ms. Webb (pointing at the map):  This is the driveway.  Is it going to be a driveway or a Village 
street?  Mr. Vredenburgh:  A private driveway.  Ms. Webb:  So whoever owns it will be responsible 
for the maintenance of it?  Mr. Vredenburgh:  There would be an agreement among the three 
owners. 215 
 
Ms. Webb:  It was not that long ago.  Unfortunately, I got rid of all the 30 years worth of documents 
I had when I was on the Planning Board.  The Village instituted the flag lot in the zoning when the 
new zoning was put in.  There was a good reason for it.  There was an application.  At that time it 
would benefit the owners.  I believe they withdrew the application.  I can’t remember exactly what 220 
happened.  It never happened.  That was a while ago that the Village put the law in giving protection 
for this sort of thing so we didn’t have to go through this for everybody who wanted a flag lot.  I 
guess I don’t understand why it was changed.  I’m not sure what happened. 
 
Mr. Stokes:  The prior application you are thinking of, and I was serving the Board at the time, there 225 
was a variance application and the variance was denied.  For this application, there was a variance 
application and the variance was granted.  Once the variance is granted, it now becomes the 
controlling authority for the issue of the lot frontage. 
 
J. Gavilondo:  The difference is that in the Code, the flag lot provision is under prohibited use.  230 
There is a different standard for use variance versus area variance.  The ZBA decided it was not a 
use variance, but it was an area variance.  So they used the area variance standard to grant the 
variance. 
 
Mr. Steinberg:  I have to say that we do reserve our rights.  The Village Counsel does give a 235 
different interpretation of the application of the Code.  In our view, the Board acted improperly by 
giving an area variance.  The Code is explicit about the fact that a flag lot is a prohibited use.  I 
would prefer that it doesn’t go in that direction, but there is still an outstanding legal issue around 
whether the Board could give an area variance for a flag lot under the existing Code, not under the 
proposed change in the Code. 240 
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R. Huftalen:  I believe the changes were adopted.  Mr. Stokes:  Last week. 
 
Mr. Steinberg:  To my knowledge.  The ZBA action was under the old Code and not the new Code.  
I would recommend and welcome this consideration under the new Code, which I think is more 245 
thoughtful.   
 
S. McEntee:  Has the Code changed?  Mr. Stokes:  Yes.  S. McEntee:  When did that become 
official?  Mr. Stokes:  I can’t tell you an exact date, but it was sent to Albany for filing last week.  
Presumably, it is already in effect.  The ZBA determination is binding on this Board.  You may 250 
disagree with it, but it is not within this Planning Board’s authority to rewrite that variance. 
 
Mr. Steinberg:  As I said, I think the issue remains as to whether the ZBA acted properly. 
 
R. Huftalen:  Are there any more comments from the public?  Seeing no comments from the public, I 255 
am going to make a motion to close the public hearing.  S. McEntee:  Second.  R. Huftalen:  All in 
favor? 
 
A. Walburger:  Aye.  J. Gavilondo:  Aye.  A. McDowell:  Aye.  R. Huftalen:  Aye.  S. McEntee:  
Aye.  The motion carried with 5 in favor, 0 opposed. 260 
 
R. Huftalen:  Are there any further items for discussion at this point? 
 
S. McEntee:  Yes.  If the determination of the Zoning Board of Appeals is binding, why are we 
discussing it?  Mr. Stokes:  Because you still need to approve the subdivision just like you approve 265 
every other subdivision within the Village.  The ZBA only modified dimensional requirements for 
the lots.  You are still the body that has the authority and jurisdiction to actually approve the 
subdivision.  S. McEntee:  But not to disapprove?  Mr. Stokes:  You need to find some respect to one 
or more reasons why the application is not in accordance with the Code as modified by the variance 
to disapprove it. 270 
 
R. Huftalen:  We have Chapter 155 – Subdivision of Land here.  We also have a draft resolution. 
 
A. Walburger:  I’m not done with discussion yet.  I still have concerns that any of the special uses 
beyond single family residential on that driveway will become an impediment to all four of the lots.  275 
In and out traffic will be quite a bit on something that is not solely single family homes back there. 
 
S. McEntee:  As part of the determination of the ZBA, there was no significant increase in traffic.  
They were making an assumption, I think.  They were making an assumption there was going to be 
nothing back there that would generate significant traffic.  What you listed could possibly generate a 280 
lot of traffic. 
  
R. Huftalen:  But that would be for consideration if we had a special use permit in front of us.  The 
applicant here is only requesting a subdivision from one lot to two lots.  I think that’s what the ZBA 
was looking at in that case. 285 
 
R. Huftalen:  I would ask to adjourn and take the Board in for attorney/client privilege discussion for 
a few minutes.  S. McEntee:  Second.  The motion carried with 5 in favor, 0 opposed.   
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The Board went into conference at 7:34 p.m.  The Board entered back into session at 7:42 p.m. 290 
 
R. Huftalen:  The Board has received a draft resolution which would grant final plat approval to the 
applicant.  We have to consider the provisions in Chapter 155 for Subdivision of Land and the 
significant findings of the Zoning Board of Appeals made in their resolution of granting the 
variance.  One of the key ones being that, as currently configured, one single family residence could 295 
be constructed as of right.  The granting of the requested variance would allow one additional single 
family residence.  As such, the practical effect of the granting of the variance would be to allow for 
vehicular ingress and egress for four private residences rather than three across the existing paved 
drive.  To me, that is a significant finding of fact and influential.  Any further discussion on the 
resolution?  Would the Board like some time to consider the resolution and carry the discussion to 300 
the next scheduled meeting of the Planning Board?  (All five Board members answered yes.)  That 
being the case, I will move to continue the discussion at the next regularly scheduled Planning Board 
meeting.  J. Gavilondo:  Second.  The motion carried with 5 in favor, 0 opposed. 
 

* * * * * 305 
 

Sphere Cazenovia, LLC, and New Venture Assets, LLC, Special Permit, Site Plan Review, 

Architectural Review (Aldi) 

Greg Widrick, Kurt Wendler, and David Muraco were present.   
 310 
R. Huftalen:  This is a public hearing to consider the application by Sphere Cazenovia/New Venture 
Assets for a special permit approval, site plan approval, and architectural review approval for the 
proposed demolition of the existing residence, diner, and cabin motel facilities and construction of a 
new mixed use development including an Aldi grocery store, a pharmacy with drive through 
facilities, a banking institution with drive through facilities, and a residential apartment complex 315 
located on properties known as 2364 U.S. Route 20 and 2390-2392 U.S. Route 20. 
 
Mr. Widrick:  For the record, we are also seeking subdivision approval.   
 
Mr. Stokes:  The public hearing was never noticed for subdivision approval.  There is no subdivision 320 
map in the folder other than the preliminary sketch map. 
 
Mr. Wendler:  Do you think it wasn’t issued as a public notice because you didn’t have a subdivision 
map? 
 325 
Mr. Stokes:  There is no subdivision map on file.  Correct.  Your attorney was notified of that before 
that notice was published. 
 
R. Huftalen:  We are continuing this hearing from last month.  We had a number of comments and 
input in the interim since our last meeting.  Is there anything the applicant wants to discuss or 330 
present?  Do members of the Board have any questions or items they want to get on the record at this 
time? 
 
Mr. Wendler:  We continue to seek comments.  We are contemplating changes to the plan.  We don’t 
have anything to present this evening.  It is a little premature.  We are focusing some of our direction 335 
toward Access Drive D.  We look forward to hearing more comments. 
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R. Huftalen:  Any comments from the Board before we open it up to the public? 
 
S. McEntee:  Are some of your contemplated changes surrounding stormwater mitigation?  340 
Mr. Wendler:  Not at this point.   
 
S. McEntee:  Are any of your contemplated changes surrounding fronting the business on a Village 
street?  Mr. Widrick:  That was addressed at the last public hearing. 
 345 
S. McEntee:  He was talking about contemplated changes.  I was wondering about any changes.  
Mr. Wendler:  No changes.   
 
S. McEntee:  Any changes concerning the location of the loading zone?  Mr. Wendler:  No.  But we 
are considering trying to lessen the sight lines to that, which I know was one of your concerns.  We 350 
have an idea in mind for that. 
 
A. McDowell:  What did you say about access for D?  Mr. Wendler:  We are focusing Access 
Drive D as some of our focus for the changes we are considering.  A. McDowell:  Could you explain 
that?  Mr. Wendler:  It is hard to do without a plan.  We will have a plan for the next meeting.  We 355 
also wanted to have another chance at hearing more public comment before we made any more 
changes.  Mr. Widrick:  Get one comprehensive review.  It is Internal Drive D, Village Street D, the 
one in the back. 
 
A. McDowell:  Were you contemplating an entrance from Route 20?  Mr. Widrick:  Yes, that 360 
remains the same.   
 
Mr. Wendler:  One of the comments on Access Drive D is that it is going to look more like a village 
street.  So we have some ideas on how to do that. 
 365 
J. Gavilondo:  Is there any discussion about overall configuration of the project—changing or 
modifying the overall configuration?  Mr. Widrick:  No, not other than what we showed at the last 
meeting where we pushed the bank and the space behind that up tight to Village Street C. 
 
A. Walburger:  I had expressed in some discussions, and this goes along with the Village Street D 370 
comment, in strengthening the greenspace divide between the parking lot and Village Street D, 
incorporating more parallel parking as opposed to, in lieu of, or trading off structured parking lot 
parking for parallel parking along there to strengthen the Village street character.  Also, we have not 
asked a whole lot of questions about this, but one thing that has come up in the interim is the use of 
the multifamily component in back, the target market, and the potential desire to have elevators for 375 
those two-story structures to serve more of our aging elderly market.  That’s pretty much the extent 
of what has been kicked around. 
 
J. Gavilondo:  One other thing, since you mentioned the residential, I had mentioned in the last 
public hearing about moving parking to the back of the residential.  The County’s recommendation 380 
is similar to that.  I am wondering if there is any contemplation on aligning the residential to the 
street and moving the parking in the back.  Mr. Muraco:  No. 
 
R. Huftalen:  Do you mind amplifying your thinking on that?  Mr. Muraco:  The way I have those 
buildings positioned now is similar to what I have done before.  They are apartments.  I want 385 
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privacy.  I want back yards.  I’m not interested in having buildings facing onto a main driveway and 
then having parking on the other side.  There is no green.  By stacking them the way they are, they 
lay out perfectly with the topography of the site.  The privacy, marketability . . . I know what I have 
to do.  I saw that commons plan and have no desire. 
 390 
R. Huftalen:  For the rest of the public in attendance here, we received a referral back from the 
County.  They included some suggested layouts, some of which were quite a bit different than what 
has been proposed.  At least one was pretty similar.  That is part of the public record.  There have 
also been some comments that each of the members of the Planning Board were sent from Sparky 
Christakos, comments from Mr. Randall Arendt.  He asked that be included in the public record.  395 
More questions or comments right now?  Or open this up to the public?  I would like to open it up to 
the public for comments and invite you to speak loudly.  Also I would remind the Planning Board so 
the audience can hear us better. 
 
Bobbie Constable:  There is a lot of vegetation on the 10-1/2 acres up there.  Do you plan to use any 400 
of that at all?  Are you going to rip it all out?  Mr. Muraco:  No.  Those plans have been submitted 
about retaining and keeping a lot of the existing trees and buffer.  That’s all on record.  The 
apartment portion, if you are just referring to that, is only about 2 acres and that is a rolling hill and 
we have been brush hogging and it is clear. 
 405 
Barry Schreibman:  I live at 5 Burton Street in the Village.  I am a zoning lawyer and I have been 
asked by some concerned citizens to review and comment on the County Planning report 
recommendations that I know is before you.  I have prepared a letter that does exactly that and I 
would like to submit it into the record.  I have copies for each member.  Just very briefly, a comment 
on the letter I have just handed you, then I will leave it to you to review it at your leisure.  I’m not 410 
going to go into all of the details.  But, in general, I would like to say that . . .  I think we all know 
that Ms. Gavilondo has been recently taken to task for expressing or closely questioning this project.  
I think that the County Planning report vindicates that close questioning.  It shows that this careful 
questioning is well founded.  It seems to me that the County Planning has uncovered in its closely 
reasoned 9 pages are two categories of concern.  The first category is that it has enumerated multiple 415 
outright violations, as the proposal now stands, of both the zoning law and the wellhead protection 
plan.  The wellhead protection plan violations are particularly significant, and I ask you to consider 
those carefully in the letter.  The other category is that the proposal, as currently configured, violates 
planned zoning.  One of the basic ideas in both what the County Planning came up with and what my 
analysis of it shows, is that if the 2008 Village and Town Comprehensive Plan, however amended 420 
and however modified since 2008, if it evidences anything along with the Design Guidelines that 
were enacted after it evidences anything.  It evidences that there is a community consensus that 
growth in this Village be planned and not developer directed.  The problem, I think, the County 
Planning Department, and a lot of Cazenovians have with this proposal is that it’s really the fruit of 
developer directed planning.  It really goes against the grain of the $200,000 and two years of effort 425 
that went into the 2008 plan and all of the subsequent effort that went into the Design Guidelines.  
The Aldi project, as the County Planning report makes clear, is “typical” and auto dependent.  They 
call it commercial development.  Other people would not use that euphemism.  They would 
simply say strip mall.  As such, and I’m winding up with this.  It utterly fails to create the distinct 
sense of place that the Comprehensive Plan and the Design Guidelines call for at this site.  Again, 430 
that’s a vision.  It is a community consensus vision.  My clients ask that you do your duty and 
implement that vision.  Thank you. 
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A. McDowell:  I have been on this Board for 15 years and I never saw a report like this from the 
County.  I have never seen them spend such detailed time.  I am taken aback why all of a sudden this 435 
project is at the forefront.  Not only are there 9 pages, there were 5 different site plan reviews.  I was 
stymied.  I have never seen anything like it. 
 
Mr. Schreibman:  I wasn’t going to say anything because I’m not sure of your experience.  But now 
that you have mentioned it . . .  I have been a zoning lawyer for a few decades.  I have never seen the 440 
likes of this either.  Usually, either it is a rubber stamp or a few paragraphs worth of critique.  These 
9 single-spaced very closely reasoned pages are really telling you something—that this project puts 
the Village at a crossroads.  That it is a weighty and significant decision.  That’s how I read it. 
 
Kurt Wheeler, 5 Liberty Street:  To that point, for the record, this is a rebuttal to the County Planning 445 
report with extensive documentation, including a letter from the Village Engineer outlining his 
review to date, particularly the stormwater management and calling into question many of the 
findings and certainly the conclusion of the County report.  I would echo that in my 11 years of 
public service, I have never seen a report of this nature.  Not just the extent of it, but also the tone of 
it.  I would like to enter that into the record please. 450 
 
R. Huftalen:  The record grows.  Further comments? 
 
Anne Beckwith Ferguson, 4573 Syracuse Road:  I think it is worth reminding everyone again that 
this is not about whether or not we want an Aldi’s.  It is worth reminding again that the VES 455 
(Village Edge South) Guidelines were created to ensure that the gateway to the Village reflected the 
community’s desires.  The Guidelines encouraged planned economic development.  Finally, we had 
something that we could put in front of developers and say:  This is what we want for our Village.  
And if you can’t do it, someone else will.  It was passed into zoning law supposedly to avoid the 
very situation we are in tonight and have been discussing for the last several months.  The project 460 
being considered is contrary to many of the Village’s own guidelines.  Your community is asking 
that you uphold the emphatic intent of the Guidelines and the clarity of the Comprehensive Plan of 
2008 of Route 20 East, about the type of development, the purpose, size, and architecture of its 
buildings.  A big box strip mall is not a planned gateway to the Village that the community wants.  
On top of it all, but not as well known, is that the Village Board passed a law in March to change the 465 
VES to allow drive-thrus.  Specifically, drive-thru banks and drugstores, which were disallowed 
under the VES Guidelines and Comprehensive Plan due to the potential impact on the aquifer.  Once 
again, in regard to the series of zoning changes being made by the Village, I am appalled at how 
gullible they must think the public is to think that this is just a coincidence when it is so obvious that 
they are being made to satisfy a developer or upcoming project.  The County document that was 470 
referred to, in reviewing the project, it provides a clear full force rebuttal to the position that the 
project meets our VES Guidelines.  In point after point, 9 pages, the project fails in terms of the size, 
purpose and location of buildings, the cosmetic attempts for walkability and greenspaces, the 
automobile dependent plan that does not compliment the Village center, that threatens impervious 
surfaces, that does not fit the Village character, look and feel.  This is what the County is saying.  It 475 
risks damage to the aquifer and the wellhead protection zone.  In its words, shows no creativity by 
the developer and is “quite typical and very similar to development in other communities, most 
of which don't have design guidelines in place.”  The County called this, at best, a start.  “As 
currently proposed, this project has done little to meet the intent and requirement of the VES-
MU zone and would require many improvements before it could even be considered 480 
approvable.  This not planned development.  This is an approach to development that if it doesn’t fit 
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the zoning or the Guidelines, let’s change it.  You appear to be doing everything to accommodate the 
developer by eroding the very Guidelines that were created to prevent us from doing so and 
disregarding the will of its citizens.  Please!  Enough is enough!  This may be our good mayor’s 
vision, but it is not one shared by the community either in the Village or Town.  Your continued 485 
attempts at tweaking and changing are like putting lipstick on a pig at this point.  It is a really sad 
state when a community has to practically beg you to uphold the Guidelines that were passed.  The 
solution is simple.  Just say:  No thanks.  Come back when you can meet the Guidelines or move 
your project across the street where a suitable site awaits you. 
 490 
(Audience applause.) 
 
Carlos Gavilondo:  I live in the Village.  I am the President of the Cazenovia Preservation 
Foundation (CPF).  I haven’t seen the mayor’s rebuttal to the County’s report.  However, the 
suggestion that the County’s report somehow reflects some sort of nefarious purpose, I don’t share 495 
and I don’t understand the basis of that.  I don’t know any of the folks in the County Planning 
Department.  I went on their website today.  There are three professional planners, a director, and 
assistant director.  Planning is their job.  I think their report should be given adequate weight and 
attention.  Thank you. 
 500 
William Hall:  I am a former Chairman of the Planning Board.  I’m glad I’m here and not there.  I 
have heard a lot of comments.  I got thrown into this thing because somebody sent me the 9-page 
County document.  I have never seen anything like it.  That was a work of art.  I would say I was 
really upset until I received, later, the five alternatives that the County suggested.  I can assure you 
that this same group right here would vehemently oppose four of the five alternatives that were 505 
presented by the County.  I think one of them has merit.  And if that’s what we have to do, we can 
get pretty darn close to that with what is being proposed now with some minor tweaking.  And that 
might just satisfy the County and a lot of people here that we went with the planning geniuses of the 
County.  Thank you. 
 510 
R. Huftalen:  Just as the report is a matter of public record, there are the alternatives that Mr. Hall is 
talking about that the County recommended.  Four of the five of them have substantial parking 
between the buildings and Route 20 and would be, I think, problematic as Mr. Hall noted.  Further 
comments? 
 515 
Sarah Webster:  I live on Burlingame Road.  I read the County report.  I was intrigued that they spent 
so much time and detail on it.  But when I was the Director of the Stone Quarry Hill Art Park, I sat 
on a number of committees.  Those were for arts related organizations throughout Madison County.  
In the two years that I did that, it was clearly evident at every one of those meetings that Cazenovia 
is the jewel of Madison County.  All of these other organizations never got the attention for the 520 
different things we were doing.  We did an economic impact survey and found out what the impact 
was to the community.  The County then distributed that to other arts organizations because it was so 
impressive.  None of the other organizations were doing as much as we were doing.  For many years 
prior to that and even continuing, we are the jewel of Madison County.  I understand why they wrote 
this.  They are concerned that if it happens to this, it happens to the county as a ripple effect.  I 525 
would encourage everybody who has not read this report to read it.  I have not seen the other five 
plans.  I would be very interested in seeing them.  I was very impressed with the detail that went into 
this.  There are changes that should be looked at.  Again, as Anne said, it’s not about whether or not 
we want an Aldi’s or we want any of these stores.  That has never been the issue.  Social media is 
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trying to make it an argument that way.  The Republican is trying to make it an argument that way.  530 
It is not about that.  It is what should be put in that area to maintain the community character, which 
is why we all live in this community and don’t live in Cicero or someplace else. 
 
R. Huftalen:  Are there any other comments or input from the public? 
 535 
R. Huftalen:  I received a request from the applicants regarding the recusal of one of the members.  I 
would like to include that as part of the public record. 
 
J. Gavilondo:  What is it? 
 540 
R. Huftalen:  It is a request to the chairman to ask for Mrs. Gavilondo to recuse herself. 
 
J. Gavilondo:  This is the first I have heard of this.  Why don’t we talk about that? 
 
R. Huftalen:  It was via email correspondence.  Obviously, I have not taken any action on it. 545 
 
J. Gavilondo:  If you are making it part of the public record, we should probably talk about it.  
Gentlemen, have at it. 
 
Mr. Widrick:  We saw the article also.  I don’t know how you would not expect us to as we sit here 550 
through the experiences we have had and from what we have read in the newspaper article that we 
would not ask for your recusal for potential conflict of interest. 
 
J. Gavilondo:  Based on what? 
 555 
Mr. Widrick:  Based on a kinship relationship with the president of the largest organization that is 
looking to have this project not be part of this community.  There is Village Code that states what a 
conflict of interest is and what the power of the chairman could do for what that position is.  I cited 
it.  I can’t believe you would expect that we wouldn’t.   
 560 
J. Gavilondo:  I don’t know that I would expect that you would or you wouldn’t.  But if you are 
going to raise it, you should raise it.  
 
Mr. Widrick:  We did.  We officially did it in writing and submitted it to the chairman of the 
Planning Board.  I assumed it would be circulated to you. 565 
 
J. Gavilondo:  No, it was not.   
 
R. Huftalen:  I will circulate that. 
 570 
J. Gavilondo:  There is no conflict of interest because there is no interest in this proposal, other than 
what the interests of the community are, both from my perspective and from a number of the 
community members’ perspectives, including CPF, including the people who live in the Town and 
the Village.  I don’t have a pecuniary interest in your development.  I don’t have any kind of interest 
in your development other than whether it is appropriate for this community.  I will not be recusing 575 
myself from this. 
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Mr. Widrick:  That’s fine.  Our demand has been made as part of the public record. 
 
Diane Webb:  I just want to say that the last five years I was on the Planning Board and served with 580 
Jen that everybody does their job, but Jen puts so much time investigating everything that comes up.  
The way I see it and saw it, she wants to make sure that every application submitted fits our laws.  I 
think it is utterly absurd that you should demand her recusal of herself. 
 
Barry Schreibman:  You will see in my submission at the beginning as a preliminary matter, I 585 
commented on the article in The Republican.  Since it has come up, I just want to state for the record 
that this kinship business is nothing but sexism because it assumes that Jen Gavilondo is the 
mindless mouthpiece of her husband.  My question is:  If her skepticism about this project makes her 
a shill against the project, then why doesn’t advocacy of the project on the part of Mr. Emerson and 
others make them a shill for the developer?  It is the same logic and the same degree of proof, which 590 
means zero.  It is simply sexism to assume that Jen Gavilondo is nothing more than an emanation 
from her husband. 
 
Mr. Widrick:  I won’t take that comment.  First of all, I would be upset if I were you (speaking to 
Mrs. Gavilondo) for having him bring something like that up.  That has nothing to do with it.  I don’t 595 
care what sex Ms. Gavilondo is.  It is a point of our project and our investment and what this project 
can do for our community. 
 
Bob Ridler:  I have a question.  You said it is in the public record.  Can you read the request, what it 
states, and the basis for that request?  When did you receive that request? 600 
 
R. Huftalen:  I could read it, yes, but I would prefer to share it with Ms. Gavilondo and the rest of the 
members of the Board.  It will become part of the public record.  I received it 10/4. 
 
Mr. Ridler:  Six days ago.  And it is just coming to light on the 10th. 605 
 
Mr. Hall:  I just wanted to say that I enjoy this village as much as anybody in this room.  I have been 
here for 48 years.  I want this project to be right just like everybody else.  Certainly, I think that the 
County’s 9 pages was a great effort, perhaps, to help.  But it may be read the other way.  When I 
looked at their alternate #1, which they spent a lot of time on, and usually the first alternate is the 610 
one they spend the most time on, if we can get close to that, then we are listening to what the County 
says, we are addressing the concerns of people that we are not looking at this project correctly, that 
we might have a project that we could work at.  You are kidding yourselves if you think that another 
developer is going to come around next year or the year after.  I’m not working with them.  From 
what I have heard at the meetings I have been at, they appear to be somebody you can work with.  I 615 
think we have to tweak this project.  There are some good things about it.  There are some things I 
don’t like.  But if we can work together, this is an opportunity that the Village should not throw out 
the door.  Thank you.   
 
(Audience applause) 620 
 
John Dickerson:  I live in New Woodstock.  I rarely come to one of these meetings.  I came to one of 
the other Aldi meetings because my family is very much pro that possibility.  My wife and I grew up 
here in 50-some years.  The only other time I was really active in something like this is when my 
daughter was young.  She wanted to have a dairy goat.  At the time, we had to have 15 acres to have 625 
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a single dairy goat.  We worked through the process.  We were able to get an exemption because she 
was part of 4-H.  I’m not into the zoning and so forth, but live and let live.  I just think we are over 
legislating and over controlling every aspect of this.  It is so sad to see good people, good businesses 
pushed away because we are trying to hang on so tight.  I think that is a threat to that development.  I 
am blessed to be part of the community.   630 
 
R. Shain Emerson:  4 Burr Street.  I spent 10 years on the Village Board.  I spent 20 years on the 
Village Board of Appeals.  I have to agree with what Bill Hall said.  I worked on the CAPP 
(Cazenovia Area Planning Project) project.  I was on that for two years.  I worked on the Route 20 
project that included this land as well as the land all the way over to Nelson.  Bill puts it the way that 635 
people should look at it.  It is a viable project.  It evidently needs some tweaking.  Anne’s comments 
on the County Planning Board are certainly agreeable with me.  I have never seen them do anything 
like this.  But somehow there should be a compromise because, as Bill said, there is not going to be 
another guy coming along right after this. 
 640 
Madeline Hartt:  2945 Old Trees Lane, Cazenovia.  I fail to see why it is necessary that we develop 
this land, that this is the only project that is going to come along.  Maybe that’s not the right thing 
for Cazenovia to have in the first place.  I would like to have another supermarket to choose from.  
But does it necessarily mean this looking like every other Aldi’s?  Make it look like Cazenovia.  
Make your thing fit into Cazenovia.  Dave Katleski has done an excellent job of making his brewery 645 
fit into Cazenovia.  Not that I was for it.  I’m just saying maybe it’s not the right thing for 
Cazenovia. 
 
Will Wester:  59 Farnham Street.  We’ve heard a lot of great comments.  A few words really stick 
out to me.  Jewel is one of them.  You don’t have to drive very far in Madison County to be 650 
reaffirmed of that.  This opportunity isn’t going to happen anywhere else in Madison County.  I’m 
not saying I’m pro Aldi’s or pro anything.  But we are going in either of two directions:  We are 
staying the same or we are moving forward.  And staying the same is the same as going backwards.  
Go down to DeRuyter.  Go to Morrisville.  Go in any direction you want and find me a jewel there.  
They don’t even have opportunities.  This is something we need to tweak and look at it hard and 655 
maybe long to make it happen.  Thank you. 
 
Sarah Webster:  Just to follow up.  I think some of the people, like myself, may be perceived as 
against this.  It is not against it.  We are a community and a country of laws and ordinances.  We 
have to follow rules.  And there are rules on the books.  The County has outlaid and people have 660 
spoken up about how this development doesn’t follow the rules.  A year ago, I wanted to bring my 
mom back to Cazenovia.  An 88-year old woman who served on the Village Zoning Board, who was 
a teacher in the school district for many years.  A great community member of Cazenovia for over 
50 years.  I wanted to put her in the barn that was on our property.  But I found out after two months 
of dealing with the Town Code Enforcement Officer, I needed to change my whole zoning to do 665 
that.  I couldn’t do that.  So I put her someplace else.  I didn’t try to jam it through the Town Board 
and say she has to be there and you have to do this and you have to make all these exceptions for me.  
I feel like we are trying to make a lot of concessions for this development.  People here are saying:  
Yes, let’s tweak it.  But there are a number of things that need to be changed that you all have asked 
them.  Have you considered changing this?  We are hearing no, no, no.  We are wanting to work 670 
with these people.  It’s not that we don’t want the Aldi’s or we don’t want the development.  We 
want it to be right.  That’s all we are saying.  We are asking you to make it right.  It’s a big job for 
you.  The plan that has been submitted hasn’t really changed since I attended the first meeting back 
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in April.  The buildings are still in the same spot.  They still look the same.  It hasn’t really changed.  
We are talking about making changes to village street D.  And yes, that probably needs to be done 675 
too, but there are other things.  There are 10 pages that the County has brought out.  And that is what 
we are asking you to uphold.  If we are asked to live by these rules, everyone else should be as well.  
We should not be changing them, one out here, one out there, to satisfy development. 
 
(Audience applause) 680 
 
R. Huftalen:  We received the application back in April.  I would say there has been a lot of 
discussion back and forth.  There have been a number of changes made to the initial plan.  I would 
also add that the input we got from the County, for instance, and consider it and look at the different 
alternatives that have been proposed there, it points out that this is a developed piece of property that 685 
has a number of constrictions and is not easy to develop.  That has been part of the Design 
Guidelines.  Someone said earlier, I think it was Mr. Schreibman, it is our duty as a Planning Board 
to consider the responsibility we have to enforce these rules.  I’m not up here to try to respond to 
public comment, but I do feel like I have put in a lot of hours looking at this project.  I have seen a 
lot of arguments for and against the different things.  Some things that get said in a public hearing 690 
that suggest we would be willing to jeopardize the aquifer, to me, is a poor reflection on how 
seriously each of these members, for and against the project, take their duty.  I just want to say that I 
appreciate your admonition that we need to follow the rules.  I can assure you that each of us 
believes we are doing that to the best of our ability. 
 695 
John Cawley:  17 Forman Street.  Since you just mentioned the aquifer, and I guess the County is 
also concerned about the aquifer up there, and a differing opinion perhaps coming from the Village 
Engineer, I would suggest you get a hydrology study to advise the Board and protect it against 
jeopardizing it.  You really need that kind of expertise to advise you. 
 700 
R. Huftalen:  Thanks for your suggestion.  Further comments?  Discussion from the Planning Board?  
(No one spoke.)  In my mind, there have been a lot of things added to the record and a lot of things 
that require more consideration by the Board.  One of the things that I should clarify and, in part, the 
reason for my delay in circulating the request for recusing Ms. Gavilondo, is that our Planning Board 
has been actively working to retain alternate counsel to represent us.  Mr. Stokes has recused himself 705 
because of an issue with regard to a SHPO (State Historic Preservation Office) determination and 
SEQR (State Environmental Quality Review) and Jim’s representation of the Village Board.  He felt 
that to avoid the appearance of impropriety, he would recuse himself.  We have not been successful 
yet in retaining counsel to advise the members of the Board.  I have gotten feedback from 
individuals on the Board that, indeed, we do want to retain counsel.  I feel like we need it to get 710 
some help in doing our duty to interpret these laws and the various provisions that we need to 
consider in order to make a decision.  As we continue to consider all that’s been put before us, I’m 
hopeful we would be able to get the input of new counsel and take some time to get them apprised of 
the issues that we need guidance on.  I would like to suggest that we continue the public hearing and 
meet again, potentially within the next couple of weeks, to discuss the application and discuss the 715 
legal issues involved. 
 
S. McEntee:  Is that contingent upon new counsel being in place?   
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R. Huftalen:  Yes.  Is everyone available two Mondays from now?  (All members said yes.)  I am 720 
going to continue the public hearing until October 24 at 7:00 p.m.  At that time, I expect that we will 
be able to consult with new counsel.  We will put a notice in the paper. 
 
Mr. Widrick:  I conferred with our surveyor and do have that plot for subdivision.  Can we submit 
that and get that into the notice also?   725 
 
Mr. Stokes:  You can submit it and we can look at it.   
 
Mr. Widrick:  It will be here tomorrow. 
 730 
Mr. Stokes:  Do you plan to submit anything additional prior to the next meeting?   
 
Mr. Widrick:  I don’t know.  I hope so.  There are some things out there that we need to get feedback 
on.  But we will try. 
 735 
Mr. Stokes:  Rich, I’m thinking that your meeting, new counsel or not, would be a lot more 
productive if you have a new submission. 
 
J. Gavilondo:  Why are we scheduling a meeting for the 24th?   
 740 
R. Huftalen:  To consider the stuff we received tonight.  To get the advice of new counsel.  To be 
able to have a discussion among the members of the Board.  Those are the main reasons to do it.  If 
there is no further comment at this time, we will move on to our next agenda item. 
 
(There was none at this point.) 745 
 
NOTE:  The following conversation took place after the last agenda item.  It is included here to 

keep this topic together for convenience.) 

 
Mr. Wendler:  I would like to address the subdivision application.  In a review online of my files, I 750 
show an initial binder that was submitted and subdivision application along with a subdivision. 
 
Mr. Stokes:  There is a sketch map that has just straight lines drawn on it.  But there is no actual 
subdivision map on file with the Village.   
 755 
Mr. Wendler:  (Showing a map to Mr. Stokes):  This is not what you need? 
 
Mr. Stokes:  Does it show street layouts and everything else?  The lot numbers? 
 
Mr. Wendler:  There are no streets.  No. 760 
 
Mr. Stokes:  Your proposal has streets. 
 
Mr. Wendler:  To be granted upon construction.  We are not going to provide them now. 
 765 
Mr. Stokes:  Every subdivider that comes in with a preliminary plat, as the regulations require, 
shows the preliminary street layout.  It is right in the subdivision regulations.   
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Mr. Wendler:  This is not how our surveyor, who does a lot of business with the Village, had 
proposed to do it. 770 
 
Mr. Stokes:  I’m happy to have that conversation with your surveyor off line.  But I can tell you, that 
map is not in accordance with the requirements.  I think any member of the Board will tell you that.  
It is not the type of map that any other subdivider submits for preliminary plat. 
 775 
Mr. Wendler:  So you want to see a plat showing the proposed village streets? 
 
Mr. Stokes:  I want to see a map that is in accordance with the subdivision regulations. 
 
Mr. Wendler:  I think when we submitted this, we were not going to grant village streets.  When I 780 
think about it, that’s probably why it is not on there.  So that has been a change.   
 
Mr. Stokes:  It is not my job to tell you. 
 
Mr. Wendler:  I’m not saying it is. 785 
 
R. Huftalen:  I think we need to get it clarified.  You have to get Mr. Vredenburgh and counsel on 
the same page. 
 
Mr. Widrick:  Even if there were streets, we have shifted them to the right because we have made 790 
some changes to the plan.   
 
Mr. Stokes:  Draw them on there and submit them.   
 
Mr. Widrick:  Would that prevent our application from being complete?  We have an initial 795 
submitted plan. 
 
Mr. Stokes:  It’s not a plan.  It’s a survey with some lines.  It’s a sketch.  I made your counsel aware 
of this.  This is not something that is just coming to light tonight.  You need to speak to your 
attorney. 800 
 
Mr. Widrick:  I am going from the last meeting when it was brought up that we couldn’t show a 
subdivision because there was a mistake in the notice.   
 
Mr. Stokes:  I never said there was a mistake in the notice.  It was intentionally NOT noticed 805 
because you had not submitted a preliminary plat. 
 
Mr. Widrick:  We will check.  Fine.  We will get a new one. 
 

* * * * * 810 
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Empire Farmstead Brewery, Shed, Bollards, Fire Pits, Silo and Entrance Signs, Buffer Zone Plantings 

David Katleski came forward.   
 815 
R. Huftalen stated that this is on the agenda as a discussion.  There are six items.  He mentioned that 
the Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) had met to discuss the silo sign and the entrance sign and the 
Planning Board has received the ZBA’s determination.  The Planning Board would be in a position 
to discuss these and possibly take some action if appropriate.  With regard to the bollards, they were 
depicted on the original site plan that was approved.  There was some landscaping depicted on the 820 
site plan approval.  To the extent that those are the same or modified, the Board can discuss those.  
There are some other things like the shed or fire pits that would be additions.  He suggested to break 
the discussion into things that already have a determination, things on the site plan, and then changes 
to site plan.  They decided to start with the silo sign and the entrance sign. 
 825 
Mr. Katleski explained that there is a sign that exists on the silo.  It is 1,250 feet from the road.  He 
put it up not thinking it would be viewed as a sign.  It is something that breweries do it.  It has been 
covered with a large white cloth.  He was informed that he needed to go in front of the ZBA.  The 
ZBA gave a favorable determination.  Madison County Planning Department reviewed it and they 
signed off on it.  The sign over the entrance door is a metal “e” over the door with some downward 830 
lighting.  This can only be seen from the parking lot.  It is an indicator for where the front door is.  
These signs go against the Code because they are the second and third signs. 
 
R. Huftalen pointed out that these two signs now have a variance from the ZBA.  The silo sign had a 
variance for three things.  He read from the 9/16/16 ZBA minutes:  It is a third sign on the premises, 835 
the height, and the dimensions.  The height variance is 20 feet, 8 inches as it is considered a ground 

sign.  The sign shall not have any lighting.  The color of the lettering shall be black as presented and 

not altered in any way in the future.  S. Ryan seconded.  The motion carried with 4 in favor, 

0 opposed. 
 840 
R. Huftalen continued that the first approval given by the ZBA was for the “e” sign over the 
entrance.  He read from the 9/16/16 ZBA minutes:  It shall be no more than 3 feet by 3 feet, with no 

backlighting.  Lighting is allowed by means of a downward gooseneck light or otherwise allowed by 

the Code.  Any lighting shall be dark sky compliant.  No internal lighting.  Material to be bronzed 

metal, possibly painted black.    845 
 

C. Bell made the motion to grant a variance for a second sign per the drawings initialed JND 

9/19/16.  It is an “e” over the entrance per the conditions stated.  S. Ryan seconded.  The motion 

carried with 4 in favor, 0 opposed. 

 850 
R. Huftalen asked for any questions for the applicant regarding those two signs.  None were heard.  
He made the motion to approve the sign application as presented for both signs under the same 
conditions as imposed and approved by the ZBA.  J. Gavilondo seconded.  The motion carried with 
5 in favor, 0 opposed. 
 855 
Mr. Katleski spoke regarding the bollards.  The lighting that was approved by the Village Planning 
Board was, in fact, dark sky compliant.  The lighting that arrived and was installed was not dark sky 
compliant.  When they were installed and illuminated, they were not found to be appealing.  The 
lights could not be returned.  There was a significant expense to install them.  The options to make 
them dark sky compliant are few and far between.  Even the manufacturer was having a hard time 860 
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designing plans that would accommodate for that.  Mr. Katleski went to a local artisan, Ben Cook, 
who did some of the steel work and he was able to custom make a shade to make the light dark sky 
compliant.  The lights were dimmable down to 25% illumination from 100%.  Mr. Katleski 
remarked that at 100% it looked like a runway at an airport.  He presented photos of the lights at 
25% and they are still very bright.  The solution was to add a shade that makes it dark sky compliant.  865 
One shade has been made and installed so far for the Planning Board’s comments.  These shades are 
custom made, so it will be a few weeks before they will all be done.  There are 7 lights in total.  The 
light with the shade provides enough illumination for safety.  This is an expensive solution, but if the 
Planning Board finds the sample acceptable, he will have the rest of them made. 
 870 
S. McEntee asked if all of the light is reflected and there is no direct light.  Mr. Katleski answered 
that the bulb cannot be seen whatsoever. 
 
R. Huftalen said that with issues like these, there is a photometric plan and there is a depiction of a 
typical lighting bollard.  This is a Code enforcement issue to understand how similar or different this 875 
is to what was originally provided for.  The Planning Board needs to look at this and ascertain if it 
conforms to the original intent so that the Board can help Mr. Carr (Zoning/Codes Enforcement 
Officer) in his determination of whether these comply or not.  R. Huftalen stated he went out there 
last night and there is a substantial difference and much improved.   It looks like what the Board 
initially approved.  He would be in favor of determining that those lights are substantially similar to 880 
what was approved.   
 
J. Gavilondo asked Mr. Katleski if he has talked to the neighbors who initially complained.  
Mr. Katleski answered:  Yes, in fact.  Jerry Wilson is now comfortable with the solution. 
 885 
R. Huftalen welcomed public comments, even though this is not a public hearing. 
 
Jody Reynolds stated she is pleased that there is a sample.  The temporary lights were horrific and 
were shining right into her bedroom window.  And the permanent lights were worse.  She is hoping 
this gets resolved quickly.  She would like to be kept in the loop. 890 
 
A. Walburger commented that there is no photometric report on file for a field installed 
modification.  It comes down to Bill’s judgement.  A. Walburger believes it will work.   
 
Mr. Katleski said that it looks to him to have a smaller overall perimeter and the angle is less than on 895 
the plans.  The plans had a wider angle of light. 
 
R. Huftalen made the motion to approve the modifications as presented tonight and will advise the 
Zoning/Codes Enforcement Officer that this is an acceptable alternative.  A. Walburger seconded.  
The motion carried with 5 in favor, 0 opposed. 900 
 
R. Huftalen said the next items are site plan modifications.   
 
Mr. Katleski explained that two years ago a shed was built, which was a construction trailer for 
building the facility.  It is a 12-foot by 12-foot structure.  Since then, a need was seen to store yard 905 
tools, etc.  It was moved to the back of the property.  He pointed to a site plan where the shed is now 
located.  He stated that it is on a downward slope and cannot be seen from any neighboring property.   
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Ms. Reynolds pointed out that her property is 20 feet from the shed and she walks through there 
often.  She expressed her concern that the shed was not part of the approval process.  The shed was 910 
placed there and building materials are outside around it and the pile is growing.  She understood 
that when the brewery was approved, all of the construction gear and equipment were to be stored 
inside the brewery building.  Apparently that isn’t working anymore because there is more and more 
equipment stored outside. 
 915 
R. Huftalen clarified that the Board needs to determine if a public hearing is needed to discuss these 
things.  He is glad to offer people the opportunity to comment, but a public hearing has not been 
opened.  He would like the applicant to discuss it, let the Board ask questions, and then the Board 
would be willing to listen to comments.  Then the Board can decide on the next steps. 
 920 
Mr. Katleski continued that he would like to have the shed on the property.  Being a farm brewery, 
tools are needed and he would like to keep them out of the main facility.  It is more of a convenience 
factor than anything else.  The shed is similar wood and architecture to the brewery. 
 
J. Gavilondo inquired about types of things to be stored in the shed, perhaps a tractor.  Mr. Katleski 925 
answered they would be hand tools and things of that nature.  A tractor would not fit in there.  It has 
a man door.  
 
S. McEntee asked if there is a berm.  Mr. Katleski replied:  Correct. 
 930 
R. Huftalen inquired what the setback provisions are.  Mr. Stokes believes it is 150 feet under local 
law. 
 
R. Huftalen pointed out that at a minimum, there are setback provisions in the resolution adopted 
back in 2013.  There is a 150-foot setback from the property side yard.   935 
 
Mr. Stokes added for ALL structures, not just accessory structures.  An amended site plan approval 
from the Board is needed before a building permit can be issued.  The zoning for that lot is its own 
district.  It was established by local law.  It doesn’t differentiate between structures.  He would have 
to get a variance or relocate it.  It has to be at least 150 feet from the line to avoid a variance, but an 940 
amended site plan approval from this Board is still needed.  
 
R. Huftalen informed Mr. Katleski that he would need to make an official filing to amend the site 
plan.   
 945 
The discussion moved on to fire pits.  Mr. Katleski explained that the fire pits would be actual 
structures he would build from bricks from the original Haeberle Brewery in Syracuse.  A gas line to 
the back has been installed to fuel the fire pits.  They could be used for both aesthetics and warmth. 
 
R. Huftalen said the fire pits could be included in an amendment to the site plan.   950 
 
Ms. Reynolds understands that the final Certificate of Occupancy (CO) has not been issued yet.  She 
wondered if these items are holding up the final CO.  She asked how long the term is for a temporary 
CO. 
 955 
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R. Huftalen referred her to Bill Carr in terms of how he is administering the enforcement of the CO.  
R. Huftalen believes the brewery is operating under a temporary CO right now.  Mr. Carr makes the 
determination of what is required to complete the CO.  From the Board’s perspective, the lighting 
was an issue and Mr. Carr could not issue a CO until that was resolved.  Buffer zone plantings will 
be discussed right now, which was another issue for the CO. 960 
 
Ms. Reynolds observed that the other neighbor left early and he should be included in the discussion 
of the buffer zone plantings. 
 
Mr. Katleski said he has proposed modifications to share with the Board.  When the architect 965 
originally laid this out and presented it to the Board four years ago, the net end result of the finished 
product is not reflective of what he had laid out.  He asked Matt Vredenburgh to come in and guide 
him through this to make sure he has something that accommodates the net end goal.  Mr. Katleski 
stated that he does not have an interest to try to alter what was already approved.  But based on what 
was approved, it would be totally incorrect to plant these so close together because they will just die. 970 
 
R. Huftalen amplified what the Board approved.  There is a depiction on the site plan approval that 
has subsequently been modified to change some other things.  But one of the things the Board did 
not change was a line of trees.  There were over 40 trees and they were specified by species.  They 
were depicted as being planted very close together.  In the modification that Mr. Katleski proposed, 975 
that the Board approved to the site plan, the Board stated in the narrative, the resolution approving 
that, that the trees should be expanded to provide a more naturalistic view.  It still depicts 40+ trees.  
Nobody thought this was ultimately going to be the best way to screen.  But that’s all the Board ever 
approved. 
 980 
J. Gavilondo inquired about the number of trees there now.  Ms. Reynolds answered there were 11 
yesterday and there are more today and they are about 6 feet tall.   
 
Mr. Katleski said that today’s trees have to do with the SWPPP (Stormwater Pollution Prevention 
Plan).  It has nothing with the buffer.  It is totally separate. 985 
 
Matt Vredenburgh came forward and presented drawings.  He pointed out the trees on the drawings 
that were approved previously and the 11 that are currently there.  20 feet on center is appropriate for 
Norway spruce.  He presented a photo of trees that were planted too close together, about 6-8 feet on 
center.  They do not provide adequate screening because the needles are dropping and the lower 990 
limbs are dying.  The original plan did not take into consideration the existing trees.  The one that 
the Cazenovia Advisory Conservation Commission (CACC) report refers to is the balm of gilead or 
the balsam poplar here.  It is on the plan, but Mr. Vredenburgh does not believe the ash trees and the 
large shrub are accounted for on the plan.  It is a mature tree.  When it starts showing signs of 
decline, then a new spruce can be planted.  It can be supplemented by planting behind it to establish 995 
the screen and then add to it once those ash trees start to decline.  He has never been a fan of cutting 
down a healthy tree.  It does not make sense. 
 
A. Walburger inquired if the ash tree is on the brewery side of the line.  Mr. Vredenburgh answered 
that it looks like it is right on the property line.   1000 
 
Mr. Vredenburgh put up a large drawing for the audience to see and pointed out the trees that were 
approved and they are shown 10-12 feet on center.  Spruce and some other trees get to be 20 feet 
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wide or so when they get to mature size.  Spruce trees are a pyramid shape so they are wider at the 
bottom.  When they are planted close together, not enough light gets to the lower limbs and the 1005 
needles drop and the limbs die.  If you are using trees for screening purposes, the bottoms should be 
thicker.  The original plan only noted the large poplar tree.  Other trees along the line were not noted.  
Those should be taken into consideration in terms of where the additional screen planting should be 
placed.  He proposed supplementing the existing vegetation with the evergreens behind it so they can 
work together to provide the screen.  As trees decline or die, then trees can be planted in the front if 1010 
necessary at the time. 
 
J. Gavilondo questioned whose side of the line the existing trees are on.  Capt. Wright replied that it 
depends on where you are on the line. 
 1015 
Mr. Vredenburgh indicated that his proposal would allow the trees to live a long healthy life and 
provide a screen, which is their intended purpose.  He is proposing a total of 21 trees.  This is about 
half of what was on the original plan.  He believes 40 trees is excessive.  It would be difficult to fit 
40 trees in that location. 
 1020 
R. Huftalen observed that the plan called for a 17-foot wide, 2-row buffer screen.  He appreciates 
that plantings should not be done if they are just going to fail.  But it seems to him that having two 
rows helps to improve the screening.  What Mr. Vredenburgh has proposed is only a single row.  He 
questioned if an alternate species could be used.  There is a typical species of Norway spruce, 
columnar white pine, blue spruce, and balsam fir.  He urged Mr. Vredenburgh to maintain the double 1025 
row. 
 
Mr. Vredenburgh replied that he is not opposed to mixing a few varieties together because it adds 
interest to get different colors and textures.  The double staggered row is a good thing to have to fill 
the gap because of the shape of the trees.  It improves the screen.  He commented that he is not a big 1030 
fan of the columnar tree because its name alone tells you it is not the most effective tree for 
screening.  Something wider is preferable.  He chose Norway spruce because they are so reliable in 
this environment. 
 
Capt. Wright commented that the Norway spruce is a short-term tree and that a generation from now 1035 
it will be hitting the ground. 
 
Ms. Reynolds inquired about the purpose of the buffer screen.  Is it to protect the neighbors?  She 
stated that this buffer is not helping her.  On a daily basis, she is subjected to industrial noise, farm 
noise, pub noise, backup beepers, propane trucks, weed eaters, trash trucks, delivery trucks, car 1040 
alarms, and car horns.  This is not adequate.  The way the brewery was described, she was not 
supposed to be subjected to this noise that she has 24/7.  The buffer is 11-14-foot trees.  It will be 
years before they provide anybody with a buffer.  She thought the trees were supposed to be bigger 
and with some mixed conifers, some variety, and some sound buffer.  She is getting no sound buffer.  
The trees have been planted on 91 feet of her 1,000-foot border and they are not even in the right 1045 
place.  She can’t even see those trees from her house.  They do not protect her from lights and 
sounds.  They are useless to her.  They are also useless to the next door neighbor.  The loading dock 
lights come into her house and the neighbor’s house.  The position of the trees is useless and the 
density is useless.  She needs a real buffer. 
 1050 
Mr. Katleski understands these were designed based on the visual impact study.   
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R. Huftalen stated that a landscape buffer is a pretty common feature of a site plan to try to protect 
the neighbors.  It is not a magic cure all.  To him, a double row does make more sense.  Mixing 
species is a possibility. 1055 
 
J. Gavilondo asked if the Board required a mix of species.  R. Huftalen answered that the Board did 
not talk that much about a landscape buffer. 
 
Mr. Katleski recalled that it was Mr. Ferlow’s goal not to eliminate a lot of existing trees. 1060 
 
A. Walburger said it was his recollection that the majority of Mr. Ferlow comments were about 
maintaining the balm of gilead and the ash trees. 
 
R. Huftalen called on Mr. Ferlow to comment.  Mr. Ferlow spoke:  Jody was living next door and 1065 
there was a vacant house in the back.  She expressed a comment, which was valid, which was:  We 
are getting a loading dock next to our property.  So the CACC developed a plan with 40 trees, a 
double row of mixed species, and put them very close together to get a full and complete screen 
within a short time if not immediately.  CACC looked at it similar to what Congel did on Route 92.  
They planted them very tight together so you can’t see his house.  That was the effect to provide her 1070 
a visual screen at that point in time from the activities of the loading dock.  Now three or four years 
have gone by.  If they had been planted then, four years ago, they would have grown up to some 
degree.  We are now looking at a different plan based upon actual conditions and a new neighbor—
the bed and breakfast.  Some of the existing vegetation along that hedge has probably grown as well.  
When Jody sent me an email, I referred her to Rich Huftalen and David Katleski to try to get 1075 
something that works for both of you.  There are 40 trees in the pot, so to speak, with a mixed 
species.  I don’t think the CACC, and there is another member here, which is Carlos, wants to 
comment on exactly where these need to go because they need to satisfy a neighbor’s needs as well 
as the brewery’s needs. 
 1080 
Capt. Wright said these trees are late in coming.  Activities have now increased.  There is the house 
up the hill with an active business going there.   
 
Mr. Katleski remarked that if the trees were planted before construction, they would have been 
destroyed by construction site work. 1085 
 
Capt. Wright observed that the number of trees originally thought necessary are not going to do the 
job.  This project is off the paper now and this is reality.  He invited anyone to come by and have a 
look at reality from his point of view. 
 1090 
R. Huftalen tended to think that this was not going to get resolved tonight.  He also thought that per 
Mr. Ferlow’s comments, the approved site plan provided 40+ trees arranged in a way thought to be 
the most beneficial.  Conditions are different now and there might be a better way to arrange those 
40+ trees. 
 1095 
J. Gavilondo questioned if this should be part of an amended site plan.  R. Huftalen thinks it should 
probably accompany an amended site plan.   
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S. McEntee pointed out that it would be good if the plan could be seen in advance of the next 
meeting.  He said he would go look at the property.  Mr. Katleski encouraged the Board to go look at 1100 
the site.  Ms. Reynolds and Capt. Wright also encouraged the Board to have a look from their 
property. 
 
R. Huftalen observed that tree planting schedules do not adhere to the Planning Board schedule.  He 
is unsure if it is possible for trees to be planted this time of year. 1105 
 
Mr. Katleski recapped that he would put the items on an amended site plan that he will submit to the 
Board. 
 

* * * * * 1110 
 

Andrew and Jamie Kowalczk, 61 Farnham St, Roof Mounted Solar Panels, Architectural Review 

Glenn Steed, Steed Energy, the contractor for the project, came forward to explain.  The plan is to 
put 18 solar panels on the south facing roof of the Kowalczk house.  There are a lot of trees around 
the whole house.  With the street trees, the panels might not be seen from the road.  They are pretty 1115 
well hidden.  18 panels will provide roughly 60% of their annual usage of electricity.  He believes it 
is 5.2 or 5.4 kW. 
 
J. Gavilondo inquired if the panels will be small since the roof is small.  Mr. Steed replied that the 
panels are roughly 39-1/2 inches by 66 inches.  18 panels cover the roof east to west with roughly 1120 
4 inches on either side.  But north to south there is about 24-26 inches to play with.  Fire code 
dictates that there be an access roof and that is on the north side.  Nothing will be done on the north 
side.  There is currently nothing on the north side roof.  Given the layout of the house, putting a 
ladder against the house would be done on the very front of the house or from the north side or the 
end. 1125 
 
A. Walburger voiced that he is a proponent of maintaining an 18-inch apron around the outside of 
the solar array simply for roofers and the fire department.  He is not a fan of pushing them all the 
way to the edge.   
 1130 
Mr. Steed commented that in order to maintain the 18-inch apron, he would lose two solar panels for 
a total of 16 panels remaining, which would drop almost 600 watts out of the system for a total of 
4.8 kW or a 10% reduction.  There will be 22 inches from the roof ridge to the top of the modules for 
fire access.  Mr. Steed stated he understands the concern.  Given the lower roofs below it, from a fire 
department standpoint, if they were going to access it, he would assume the most expedient way to 1135 
access it would be from the north side with a single ladder against the roof.  It is also the safest way 
to access it.  From the driveway, it would be multiple ladders to get up onto the roof.   
 
Mr. Stokes said that upon review of the application, Bill Carr, Zoning/Codes Enforcement Officer, 
was not concerned because the whole north face was available. 1140 
 
R. Huftalen noted that for the Clark Street solar panel approval, the Planning Board asked the 
applicant to send letters to the abutting neighbors notifying them of the possible installation of solar 
panels. 
 1145 
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S. McEntee asked Mr. Steed if he had spoken to any of the neighbors.  Mr. Steed said he had spoken 
with the Westers on the south side and they did not care. 
 
A. Walburger inquired about the age and condition of the existing roof.  Mr. Kowalczk said he was 
told by roofers who have looked at it that the roof is about 15 years old.  So there would be about 1150 
10+ years left on the roof and possibly more with the panels on it. 
 
A. Walburger wondered if this is a purchase or a lease.  Mr. Steed answered it is a purchase. 
 
A. Walburger inquired how proud the panels would stand.  Mr. Steed answered the standoffs are 1155 
3 inches, so they would be about 4 or 5 inches off of the roof.  A. Walburger asked if there is any 
apron detail or if you can look up the roofline to the sky.  Mr. Steed replied that if you stand in just 
the right place in the driveway, you could probably look underneath to the sky.  But being an older 
house there is the typical bow and belly.  By the time the rails are installed and everything is leveled, 
you are probably not going to see all the way up to the sky from underneath. 1160 
 
R. Huftalen commented that the only authority the Planning Board has for this application is for 
architectural review.  He is cautious about setting a precedent because future applications might pose 
more of an architectural difficulty because of how the panels are situated and they might be more 
incongruous with neighboring properties than this one is.  But because of how this one is situated 1165 
and the neighbor does not object, R. Huftalen felt comfortable making a motion.  He made a motion 
to approve the application as submitted.  S. McEntee seconded.  The motion carried with 5 in favor, 
0 opposed. 
 

* * * * * 1170 
 

R. Huftalen asked for any further business to be brought before the Board.  Hearing none, he made a 
motion to adjourn the meeting.  J. Gavilondo seconded.  The motion carried with 5 in favor, 
0 opposed.  The meeting was adjourned at 9:36 p.m. 
 1175 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 

 

Marlene A. Westcott 1180 
Recording Secretary 


